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[bookmark: _Toc437944756][bookmark: _Toc438219296]Definitions
[bookmark: _Ref437954269]Is there an expanded definition of “publicly-owned utility activities?” For example, would an applicant proposing a project activity involving a customer of a publicly-owned utility, e.g., a facility, business or university, which is interconnected with that utility, be eligible in this context?
[bookmark: _Ref437954232]No for both questions. Although applied research can be conducted anywhere, EPIC funds for this GFO cannot be spent on activities that involve any interconnection to a publicly-owned electric utility, or equipment owned or operated by a publicly-owned electric utility; match funds may be spent on those activities, however the applicant must describe how those activities benefit the IOU ratepayers. A pilot demonstration must take place within an IOU service territory and must be serviced by that IOU’s distribution system.
Are investor-owned utilities like SCE considered publicly-owned utilities?
No, the three investor-owned utilities for EPIC are Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E), San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E), and Southern California Edison Company (SCE).
What voltage level is being considered when discussing distribution system? Does it include medium voltage level distribution through the customer side? Is there a specific defined range of the “medium voltage?”
The acceptable medium voltage levels for a pilot demonstration are whatever the local utility uses for their distribution system. If the research applies to all IOU service territories, the acceptable voltage levels could be higher than 1000 volts and lower than 60 kilovolts. The research must be focused on improving the utility distribution system to provide direct IOU ratepayer benefits. 
[bookmark: _Toc437944757][bookmark: _Toc438219297]Applicant Eligibility
Is this solicitation open to other IOUs outside of California? Does that include Hetch Hetchy Water and Power, or city utilities, and other public utilities outside California?
Similar question:
Will Canadian companies be considered?
Any entity except publicly-owned utilities may apply as long as it meets the eligibility requirements of the solicitation. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power is a publicly-owned utility and therefore ineligible to apply. All EPIC funds must be spent within the United States (see Page 21 of the Solicitation Manual). 
Would you be able to provide details on if the funding opportunity could include partnering with other organizations that have supported outage work to date?
Similar question:
Will they allow teaming with the Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI) and other companies (prime/sub) relationship for the bid?
Applicants are allowed to partner with other entities, however EPIC funds for this GFO may not be used for any purposes associated with publicly-owned utility activities.
Is a California IOU lab allowed to be a subcontractor on my proposal? I spoke to a few lab leads at the IOU test lab . . . according to them, there is a recent CPUC decision (Section 14.4, Page 46) that effectively prohibits IOUs (and therefore the IOU lab facility) to participate as a subcontractor, as well as obtain CEC reimbursement for the expenses or in-kind support it makes in support of CEC EPIC.
Similar question:
When asking one of PG&E’s employees to collaborate on the subject solicitation, I got the following response:
“Unfortunately, the CPUC recently issued a decision that effectively prohibits PG&E from participating in or obtaining CEC reimbursement for the expenses or in-kind contributions it makes in support of CEC EPIC grants. Given the lack of available CEC funding for our potential participation, we are unable to participate or provide support, either financial or in-kind, for CEC EPIC funded projects at this time. So in short, we won’t be able to participate in EPIC projects/GFO-15-313 due to these restrictions. If CPUC modifies its prohibition in the future, we would be able to reconsider whether we could support or participate in such projects. ”
Can you please comment on that? I appreciate clarification.
Yes, a California IOU may be a subcontractor for applications under this solicitation. Please note that the CPUC Decision 14-04-034[footnoteRef:2] is applicable to the 2015-2017 EPIC Investment Plan. That being said, CPUC Decision 14-04-034, at pp. 60-61, states that “Neither the 2013 EPIC Decision nor any of the other EPIC decisions expressly prohibit IOU administrators from receiving or competing for CEC EPIC funds,” and that “IOU administrator participation in California Energy Commission (CEC) EPIC solicitations should be allowed only if the utilities do not provide assistance or strategic input to the CEC in a non-public forum during the CEC’s solicitation development.” For this solicitation, IOUs provided input in a public forum during solicitation development. As to IOUs’ use of their own EPIC funds as match, CPUC Decision 14-04-034, at p. 65, states that “Pacific Gas and Electric Company, San Diego Gas & Electric Company and Southern California Edison company (the utilities) may use their Electric Program Investment Charge (EPIC) funds for those in-house costs connected with projects where the utilities choose to be a necessary partner on a California Energy Commission EPIC project.” [2:  Decision Addressing Applications of the California Energy Commission, Pacific Gas and Electric Company, San Diego Gas & Electric Company, and Southern California Edison Company for approval of their Triennial Investment Plans for the Electric Program Investment Charge Program for the Years 2015 through 2017. http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M151/K183/151183650.PDF.] 

[bookmark: _Toc437944758][bookmark: _Toc438219298]Project Eligibility
If you apply a specific technology to one application, can you use that same technology for another application?
Yes. No specific technologies are excluded from this solicitation and a particular technology can be used for multiple applications. The application must explain how this particular technology will be used to meet the purposes of this solicitation and specific project group, and the specific benefits for IOU ratepayers. Applicants may submit multiple applications, though each application may address only one of the project groups identified above. If an applicant submits multiple applications that address the same project group, each application must be for a distinct project (i.e., no overlap with respect to the tasks described in the Scope of Work, Attachment 2).
Will proposals that include energy storage AND integration of demand response be considered? I believe this is a fit under Group 3. In other solicitations, energy storage and microgrids are called out specifically, so I want to be sure these are not omitted from this opportunity.
Yes, all utility-grade equipment, devices, or technologies will be considered. The application must clearly explain how research on your specific equipment, device, or technology will meet the focus of the specified project group, and how the research results will benefit the IOU ratepayers.
For Project Group 1, the examples indicate that the pilot test can be done with one of the IOUs or the CAISO. For the other groups, is it required to have a partnership with one of the IOUs or the CAISO? If not, is it highly encouraged?
Partnership with one of the IOUs or the CAISO is not required for any of the project groups. We encourage these partnerships if they add value to your project.
The screening criteria mentions that any site for pilot testing/demonstration activities needs to be located within IOU territory. If a project involves developing technology and some development related testing, would it need to be in IOU territory?
Technology development and lab testing can be conducted anywhere, but the application must describe how IOU ratepayers will directly benefit from the proposed research. Pilot testing must take place in an IOU service territory.
Regarding the following paragraph on Group 1 Project Focus on page 15 of the Solicitation Manual: “Developing best practices with a common method for the integration and interconnection of various types of renewable resources into the distribution system that can be universally applied and implemented across all California utilities.”
Does “distribution system” include connecting behind the utility meter assets (e.g., microgrid, customer owned DERs, customer load management via a control system) in service of managing distribution power? Or is it confined to the utility distribution system? 
Proposed projects may include behind-the-meter assets as long as the research results will benefit the IOU distribution system and IOU ratepayers.
The solicitation states, “Because of the timing of when awarded projects must be completed, projects that build upon research funded by the Utility-Administered University of California Greenhouse Gas Research and Reduction Program are also not eligible for funding.” We were wondering what is the reason for this new restriction and why the CEC was not interested in EPIC solicitations that may be extensions of the SONGS OII GHG programs. Could someone at the CEC shed some light on the CEC’s thinking?
The anticipated agreement start date for the awarded projects under this solicitation is June 30, 2016. It is our understanding that the SONG OII GHG projects would not be completed before that date, therefore any research that builds upon the results of those projects would not be able to begin before the encumbrance deadline of July 1, 2016 for projects awarded under GFO-15-313. The Energy Commission also needs to know the results of the SONG OII GHG projects to properly evaluate funding for any follow-on research from those projects.
Can we do a pilot test at a substation owned by a public utility that has incoming transmission lines, relays, meters, and associated communication equipment owned by an IOU? In this case, the substation is owned by Hetch Hetchy power and water, while lines and relays that we plan to test on are owned by PG&E along with the rights to the power flowing through the substation.
No. The site (substation) owner, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power System, is a publicly-owned utility. Therefore, the pilot test is ineligible because it is not located within IOU service territory and is also considered “purposes associated with publicly-owned utility activities.” Also see answer to Question #1.
[bookmark: _Toc437944759][bookmark: _Toc438219299]Application Requirements
[bookmark: _Ref438216067]The solicitation notes not to include confidential information. Does this just apply to the application? Does it also apply to grant submissions to CEC (if awarded) and to the actual products, meaning anything produced (e.g., a technology) using these funds cannot be confidential?
Similar question:
What kinds of non-confidential Products can be specified in the Scope of Work that are acceptable for a pre-commercial technology/product?
All Products submitted to the Energy Commission under an awarded grant should not contain any confidential information. Products will be retained in the Energy Commission’s records and are public records unless the Recipient proves to the Energy Commission, and the Energy Commission in its sole discretion determines, that an exemption to the Public Records Act applies. The Energy Commission does not wish to receive confidential products in any Agreement resulting from this solicitation, and applications should be designed accordingly. Inclusion of confidential information in an application is grounds for failure of the screening criteria (see Application Manual Part IV, Section E, “Stage One: Application Screening”). 
The Products submitted to the Energy Commission must be tangible items. Products typically include reports, pictures, test plans and results, copies of training materials, and presentation slides. The technical content of the submitted Products should focus on the performance of the technology/product (what does it do?), how it can be used to meet the project goals and objectives, and the benefits it can provide to IOU ratepayers; we believe this is possible without disclosing any proprietary or confidential details about the technology/product. The Final Report specified in Subtask 1.6.2 of the Scope of Work should also describe the lessons learned from this project that can be shared with other researchers, technology/project developers, and the public.
Unacceptable Products specified in the Scope of Work are typically equipment, proprietary software, and other items that would be produced from the project but would remain with the applicant or end user.
On the cover page, if we are not proposing a field demonstration, what do we do with the box about the Project Location?
If this question refers to Attachment 1, Application Form, the Project Location is where the research will be conducted.
What is meant by references in one of the attachments? Professionals from industry endorsing the applicants?
For Attachment 10, references are typically clients or people with whom an applicant or subcontractor has previously worked with on projects that are relevant to the applicant’s proposed project. 
What if we never filled out a proposal before and don’t have references?
References are required for this solicitation. References may also include colleagues or other people who can vouch for the applicant’s or subcontractor’s qualifications and experience relevant to the applicant’s proposed project.
Is there a size requirement for the section tabs?
The section tabs must be permanently affixed to the application and be large enough to be labeled with either the attachment number or the section title.
[bookmark: _Toc437944760][bookmark: _Toc438219300]Clarification Questions
Attachment 7 states that the Project Narrative document is limited to 10 pages, but Page 18 of the Solicitation Manual states that the limit is 15 pages. Which one is correct?
The Project Narrative is limited to 15 pages. Attachment 7 will be corrected under an addendum.
Regarding the Grant Funding Opportunity document, we noticed under Miscellaneous, (Section D on page 26), paragraph 3. Confidentiality – it states: “Though the entire evaluation process from receipt of applications up to the posting of the NOPA is confidential, all submitted documents will become public records after the Energy Commission posts the NOPA or the solicitation is cancelled. The Energy Commission will not accept or retain applications that identify any portion as confidential.”
Would you please let us know what this really means? For example, does this mean that the entire application should not contain any information that is confidential in nature but that any confidential intellectual property that is intended to be used in the performance of the Grant will be handled after notification but before the effective date of the Grant Agreement?
Similar question:
Does this mean our information (including cost proposal salary rates) will be viewable by third parties besides CEC?
This section means what it says. No confidential information should be submitted with your application. Please see answer to Question #14 with respect to confidential Products in any agreement that results from this solicitation. Note that intellectual property is separate from confidential information; intellectual property is not necessarily confidential. We suggest that you consult with your own counsel if you have questions on this distinction.
Yes, information in the applications, such as salary rates, can be viewed by the public after the NOPA is posted.
[bookmark: _Toc437944761][bookmark: _Toc438219301]Terms and Conditions Questions
We would like to know if there are any other agreement terms to be reviewed beyond the following terms identified at this URL http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#epicterms, specifically:
a. Grant Standard GUI link:  Exhibit C EPIC Standard Grant Terms and Conditions from the CEC funded by EPIC and CPUC (“EPIC Standard Terms”)
b. Grant University of California GUI link: Exhibit C EPIC UC Terms and Conditions from the CEC funded by EPIC and CPUC (“EPIC UC Terms”)
c. DOE GUI link: Grant Agreement Form CEC-146, Exhibit C General Terms and Conditions, Exhibit D Rights in Technical Data-Use of Facility, Exhibit E Patent Rights Use of Facilities, and Exhibit H Payments of Royalties to Sponsor, all collectively from DOE – Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory ( “DOE Terms”).
For example: 
i. If proponent ends up being the Match Fund Contributor (MFC) (as addressed by the DOE Terms) is there a separate MFC Agreement draft available for review, based on the reference to an MFCA in the DOE Terms?  
ii. If proponent ends up being a Subcontractor (as addressed by the DOE Terms) is there separate Subcontract Agreement draft available for review?
iii. Will there be any agreement terms from the University of California re their role with the DOE?
iv. We assume the Contract Standard GUI link from the above URL does not apply to this Grant Funding Opportunity: i.e. the Exhibit D EPIC Special Contract Terms and Conditions from the California Energy Commission (CEC), funded by EPIC and CPUC) listed under Standard Agreement form STD. 213.

1. The three EPIC grant Terms & Conditions (T&C) you identified are the only ones that apply to this solicitation. Pick the applicable set of T&C based on the applicant’s entity type. The T&C are binding on the Recipient, and it is up to the Recipient to ensure that any subcontractor complies with applicable flow-down terms. Please consult with your own counsel if you have questions regarding terms between you, as a potential Recipient, and your subcontractor. 
[bookmark: _Ref397940607]Is there an order of precedence in the event of conflicting terms between the EPIC Standard Terms, EPIC UC Terms, and DOE Terms?
There should not be any conflicting terms since the Recipient will be bound by one set of Terms & Conditions (absent any Special Terms & Conditions).
[bookmark: _Toc437944762][bookmark: _Toc438219302]Miscellaneous
Is the grant funding opportunity evaluated and ranked by individual funding groups? For example, proposal submitted under Group 1 will only compare with other Group 1 proposals to share the allocated funds.
Yes, all applications for a certain project group will only be scored and ranked against each other for the allocated funds.
Will the California Energy Commission provide an extension because of the holidays?
No.
I know many of the California utilities could benefit from sharing outage data with emergency response and government officials. Would you be able to confirm this assumption? 
The Energy Commission cannot speak for the California utilities.
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